
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2011 

3:15 P.M. 
 

Chairman Rico called the meeting of the Public Works Committee to order with Councilpersons 
Ladd,  Benson,  Scott,  Robinson, Gilbert  and  Berz  present.    Councilmen Murphy  and McGary 
joined  the meeting  later.   City Attorney Phil Noblett; Management Analyst Randy Burns; and 
Shirley Crownover, Assistant Clerk to the Council, were also present. 
 
Others  present  included  Richard  Beeland, Dan  Johnson,  Beverly  Johnson,  Steve  Leach,  Alice 
Cannella, Johnny Feagans, Ron Swafford, Gary Hilbert, Brian Kiesche, Lee Norris, Jim Templeton, 
Dennis  Malone,  Tony  Boyd,  Eddie  Tate,  Justin  Holland,  Officer  Carroll,  Chief  Parker,  John 
Bridger,  John Van Winkle, Daisy Madison, Danny  Thornton,  and  Bill  Payne.    Fredia  Forshee, 
Sherryl  Appleberry, and Rick Wood joined the meeting later. 
 
On motion of Councilwoman Robinson, seconded by Councilwoman Scott, the minutes of the 
previous meeting were approved as published. 
 
Mr. Leach began with Resolution (b), stating that we had a beautiful crop of wood chips, and 
this was an opportunity to get rid of them by allowing city residents and non‐city residents free 
wood  chips  for  90  days.   He  stated  that  he  hoped  no  one  objected  to  this.   Councilwoman 
Robinson  asked  him  about  homeowner  associations  and  was  told  that  they  would  be 
acceptable. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEMS FOR SEPTEMBER 27, 2011 
 

Ordinance 6© First Reading closes a portion of the right‐of‐way near the 1300 Block of Hixson 
Pike.   This goes  to Highland Drive.   Mr. Malone explained  that  this  is an unused  right‐of‐way 
that was platted during Hill City; that it is steep and has a 1136 Highland Drive address; this will 
allow  access  to  the property.   Mr. Payne  added  that  they  recommended only  to  abandon  a 
portion—191  ft.   Councilwoman Scott wanted  to know  the process—if we abandon and  this 
reverts to private property—she wanted to know how we make sure the property owner pays 
the taxes?  Mr. Payne explained that copies are sent to the Assessor’s Office; that they are the 
point of  contact  and  correct maps  to  show  the  additional  square  footage—that  they have  a 
process they go through. 
 
Mr. Leach went back  to Ordinance  (b), which  is a zoning  issue.   He explained  that  there had 
been questions about  the  zoning and  requirements of Traffic Engineering and  that  John Van 
Winkle was here to further explain this; that the parking and access had to be approved by the 
Traffic Engineer;  that  they believed  the parking  could be adequately handled.   He asked Mr. 
Van Winkle to speak. 
 



Page 2 
 

Mr.  Van Winkle noted that parking in the rear was not well defined; that we wanted all parking 
to  be  in  the  rear;  that  the  driveway was  sub‐standard;  that  after  this went  to  the  Planning 
Commission, he talked to the applicant and asked for a site plan with a scaled drawing of the 
driveway and also showing ample parking in the rear and the lay‐out.  He stated that they still 
had  to  review  the  Site  Plan  when  it  is  submitted.   Mr.  Leach  added  that  there  had  been 
questions as to whether this property could be used if rezoned, and they were okay with this. 
 
Resolution (k) authorizes Garrett Nudd to temporarily use the right‐of‐way  located at 55 East 
Main Street for the  installation of a business sign.   Mr. Malone explained that this was a new 
business on E. Main Street, and they are requesting temporary use for an aluminum sign to be 
attached to the building, 10 ft. off the sidewalk. 
 
Resolution (l) authorizes Five Guys Corporation to temporarily use the right‐of‐way  located at 
401 Broad Street along the front of the business for the placement of outdoor seating and the 
installation  of  awnings.    This  is  at  4th  and  Broad.   Mr. Malone  stated  that  this was  a  new 
business on Broad Street. 
 
Resolutions (m), (n) and (o) deal with City Sidewalk Requirements.  Resolution (m) is a change 
order for Integrated Properties, LLC on the Southside Area for a decreased amount of $l,790.27.  
Mr. Malone noted  that  they had  combined all  three Resolutions  into one  slide;  that we had 
held on to these funds, and all three were awarded to the same contractor. 
 
Councilwoman Robinson commended them on the work underway on Barton Ave., stating that 
this was  a  tremendous  improvement,  and  the  citizens  are quite  active  in  this  area, noting  a 
person who uses a motorized wheel chair who appreciated  the accessibility.   She stated  that 
she wanted  to put  in a quick word  for  the  sidewalks.   She mentioned  that a  school  in North 
Chattanooga had been revitalized and  letters had been sent to the Council; that Public Works 
had worked ahead of time to step up to the bat for citizens in this area. 
 
Councilwoman  Scott  stated  that  she  thought  Councilwoman  Robinson  had  made  good 
comments and encouraged Public Works to consider doing an evaluation of sidewalks that exist 
in front of our schools to see if there is a priority system.   
 
Mr. Malone  responded  that he was not  sure  about Normal Park;  that  they were waiting on 
funding for some of these schools; that CDBG areas are evaluated on an ongoing basis. 
 
Councilwoman Scott explained that she was talking about from a citywide perspective—that we 
needed to look at all of the schools.  Mr. Malone assured her that they do try to look at areas 
based on needs.  She asked if there was some way to budget and think about an overall list of 
schools. 
 
 



Page 3 
 
Councilman Gilbert asked about money for Highway 58 area sidewalks?  Mr. Malone responded 
that they were in Phase I and had finished the environmental work and were ready for design; 
that  nothing  had  been  done  one  Phase  11—that  we  were  in  the  process  of  getting  an 
application ready to submit. 
 
Councilman Benson felt that we needed to encourage school principals to identify safety issues 
and also use the OSHA man for this.  Mr. Leach indicated that they would be meeting with the 
school folks next week. 
 
Resolution (p) authorizes award of a contract to Blount Construction Co., Inc. for a Full Depth 
Roadway  Reclamation  Contract  in  the  amount  of  $435,790  with  a  contingency  amount  of 
$43,579.  This is a North Chattanooga area.  Mr. Malone noted that there were three bids, and 
Blount Construction Co. was  the  lowest.   Mr. Tate explained  that Citywide Services had done 
small scale reclamation; that we would use the material  in place and add cement to the soil; 
that  this  is  the  first we  have  put  out  to  bid.    Councilwoman  Scott  exclaimed  “Hallelujah”, 
prompting Mr. Tate to say he would “take up an offering”.  Councilwoman Robinson added that 
she was happy to see the name of a local company. 
 
Resolution (s) pertains to the right‐of‐way usage for The Ice Cream Show.   This  issue came up 
two weeks ago and was postponed for further discussion; that some of the folks in the condos 
had concerns about the vertical sign.   Mr. Malone reiterated that this had been deferred and 
the people living in the condos had discussed the possibility of another type sign; that they had 
talked;  that  Mr.  Hutsell  said  a  Mrs.  Hunt  had  called  him,  talking  about  a  temporary  use 
agreement in 2009 about a sign.  He stated that they would get back with Mrs. Hunt. 
 
Councilwoman  Scott  noted  that  a  lady  named  Helen  Sharp  had  brought  this  issue  to  the 
Council. 
 
Resolution (t) authorizes an Agreement with Arcadis, U.S., Inc. for professional services relative 
to  Evaluation,  Design,  and  Construction  of  Disinfection  System  Alternatives  for  the  Effluent 
from Moccasin Bend Waste Water Treatment Plant, in an amount not to exceed $996,700.  Mr. 
Leach noted that Alice Cannella was present to tell the Council more about the System. 
 
Ms. Cannella explained that the current system we use  is  liquid chlorine  in one ton cylinders; 
that  this was  built  in  1992  and  had  outlived  its  course;  that  it was  experiencing  aging  and 
problems with fittings, and its life had been used.  She mentioned a serious leak in the past that 
we were able  to maintain, but  residue had  landed  inside  the  facility, and  it was  corrosive  in 
nature.  She stated that it was time to replace this system; that most cities were getting away 
from using  liquid chlorine because  it was a hazard to employees and to the public—that most 
were  getting  away  completely;  that other  avenues  are  available,  and we have  to determine 
what is the most cost effective for Chattanooga, and Arcadis will determine this. 
 



Page 4 
 

Councilman Benson noted that this contract says professional services, questioning one million 
dollars for just professional services.  He asked if this was one million dollars for a Study?  Ms. 
Cannella noted that this would be followed by design, and the whole contract was for getting a 
new system.   Councilman Benson asked, since others had gone a different  route,  if we could 
not find a prototype from them?  Ms. Cannella responded that we had to find what was best for 
Chattanooga—that what works  for  some  place  else might  not  be  the  best  for  us;  that  the 
construction cost  is a guess because we are not  sure of  the chosen alternative.   Councilman 
Benson stated that maybe he was misunderstanding this—that this price was  for both design 
and construction, asking if construction would come later as an additional fee?  Councilwoman 
Robinson  questioned  if  this  should  not  read  “construction  administration”  and was  told  by 
Attorney Noblett “yes”. 
 
Adm. Leach next discussed the emergency purchase for structural repairs for the Wilson Road 
Bridge Rail Repair.   He mentioned the accident that had hurt the Bridge and what we need to 
do to repair it.  
 
Mr. Malone  noted  that  the  accident  happened  six weeks  ago,  and  the Design Contract was 
brought  to  the  Council;  that  the  Bridge  railing was  evaluated  and  a  set  of  plans  had  been 
completed and Talley Construction was  the  low bidder;  that  it was within our estimated cost 
and was a good bid, and the emergency purchase should move forward; that we had found out 
who had done  the damage caused by  the wreck, and we will be seeking  restitution;  that  the 
City Attorney’s office will try to reclaim this cost.  Councilman Gilbert asked about the material 
to be used and was told it will be the same.  Adm. Leach noted that this would be an Emergency 
Purchase for tonight. 
 
He  stated  that  Larry  Zehnder was here  to  go over Resolution  (u)  to  accept  a donation of  a 
Conservation  Easement  from  Joe  Chod,  Inc.  located  at  4065  Caine  Lane  to  serve  as  a 
continuation of the Greenway in the South Chickamauga Creek area.   
 
Mr. Zehnder stated  that Adm. Leach had already  told  the Council about  this;  that Rick Wood 
and Danny  Thornton were  here  for  further  comments.   At  this  time,  he wanted  to  call  the 
Council’s attention to the fact that on October 2nd at 2:30 P.M. there will be a grand opening of 
this section of the Greenway.  He called on Rick Wood. 
 
Mr. Wood stated that he was open for questions; that he did have a map showing the l.7 acre 
tract that was being donated to allow for trail construction and conservation; that we had only 
two more easements to obtain and were moving along; that this was about a 1/4th mile section; 
that the ending will be a 14 mile section, with 3.5 miles  in October.   He stated that we were 
very grateful to the Chod family.   
 
 
 



Page 5 
 
Councilman Gilbert asked about  the bridge on Shallowford Rd.?   Mr. Malone  responded  that 
Shallowford Rd. is the city portion and is scheduled to go to design starting next year; that there 
will be about a two‐year timeframe; that it will be 2015 or 2016 before it is built out. 
 
Councilman  Benson  had  some  questions  for  Public Works  concerning  Federal money  to  go 
towards economic problems in this community.  He mentioned that we had no “shovel‐ready” 
property and to get this money, we needed this in advance; that if we don’t have roads that are 
“shovel‐ready” we will lose money; that Davidson Road is a good example.  He questioned if we 
were making certain we were ahead with “shovel‐ready” property  for  federal money?   Adm. 
Leach mentioned a paving program using stimulus money—that we may or may not be “shovel‐
ready”.  Councilman Benson responded “then we are losing money”.  Mr. Payne explained that 
to be “shovel‐ready” all engineering had to be complete, and we really had very few properties 
where  this was  true;  that  the  Staff was working  on managing  projects;  that  “shovel‐ready” 
projects  for  Federal  Funds  could only be used  for  collector  roads—that  local  streets  are not 
eligible; that a very small window of projects are eligible.   
 
Councilman Benson noted that we used to do engineering work with our own people but now 
we  were  contracting  it  out.   Mr.  Payne  explained  that  it  was  difficult  to  retain  engineers 
because  they  left  the City  for higher  salaries;  that a  lot of paperwork was  involved and  their 
Staff had not increased in size. 
 
Adm. Leach added that the computerized system for traffic signals is part of Federal money and 
also the South Chickamauga Greenway. 
 
Councilman  Gilbert  asked  if  there  was  “shovel‐ready”  work  done  on  Wilcox?    Mr.  Payne 
responded that Shallowford and Wilcox are city streets; that we hope to be successful with the 
TIGER Grant on this work.  Councilman Gilbert asked if we could not make this “shovel‐ready”?  
Mr. Payne responded that  it depended on how much time we have; that  it could take one to 
two years depending on the environmental work; that to be shovel‐ready, the engineering work 
has to be done and  it has to be ready  for construction; that  in this case, there are significant 
right‐of‐ways  that we have  to obtain  from property owners.   Councilman Gilbert mentioned 
that he was looking forward to this—that the term “shovel‐ready” had come up before, and we 
need to look at this in terms of the tunnel and go ahead and make it “shovel‐ready”.  Mr. Payne 
stated that we could look at it, but we have only a fixed amount of dollars and priorities are the 
question—that we have to  focus on need; that making something “shovel‐ready” three years 
from now might mean not doing a project that we need to do now.  Councilman Gilbert stated 
that he was asking Mr. Johnson to get something ready. 
 
Chairman  Rico  stated  that  there was  a  lot more  than  “meets  the  eye”  in  getting  property 
“shovel‐ready”. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 P.M. 


